

Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan Guide: LIHTC and Multifamily Projects

Contents

Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan Guide: LIHTC and Multifamily Projects	1
Introduction	2
Background	2
What is Affirmative Marketing?	2
The Goals	2
AFHMP Regulations and Requirements	3
Housing Protected Classes	3
General AFHMP Requirements	3
Hiring Practices	4
Section 504 Accessibility Requirements	4
Symbols of Accessibility	4
What form do I use?	4
All Multifamily Rentals (regardless of funding source):	4
Non-multifamily Rentals (typically HOME only funded projects):	4
Completing the AFHMP Form and Worksheets	4
1b. Project Contract Number	4
1d. Census Tract	5
1e. Housing/Expanded Market Area:	5
3a. Demographics of Project and Housing Market Area	5
3b. Targeted Marketing Activity	7
Worksheet 3 – Community Contacts, and Worksheet 4 – Methods of Advertising	7
4a. and Worksheet 2, Establishing a Residency Preference Area	8
5a. and 5b., Public Access	8
5c. Project Site Sign and Equal Housing Opportunity (EHO) Advertising	8
Part 6, Evaluation of Marketing Activities	8
7b. – 7d. Staff Instruction/Training	8
Part 8, Additional Considerations	8
Evaluating the Plan	9

Evaluating Marketing Methods	9
Reminders Before Submitting	9
Questions?	
Sample Worksheets and Journal	11
Worksheet 3: Community Contacts, Block 4b	11
Worksheet 4: Methods of Advertising, Block 4c	12
Community Contact Journal	

Introduction

Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plans (AFHMP) should demonstrate meaningful efforts to identify and attract underserved populations in the housing market area, as underserved populations may not apply for housing without special outreach efforts.

This guide was developed to assist anyone in developing or updating an Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan (AFHMP) required by HUD, Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Qualified Allocation Plan, or National Housing Trust Fund.

Background

HUD implemented Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plans to prevent redlining in communities (segregating race or ethnicity in defined housing areas). Properties need to make efforts beyond their normal or current advertising to directly reach and successfully attract underserved populations to increase diversity. The affirmative marketing plan should strive to house both majority and minority populations represented in the housing market area to ensure that segregation/redlining does not intentionally occur.

What is Affirmative Marketing?

Affirmative Marketing means to understand the housing market area's demographics, identify underserved populations, implement marketing efforts to increase a more diverse applicant pool and house a more diverse population. It often requires extra effort to directly market to underserved populations living in the housing market areas.

Affirmative Marketing should demonstrate the efforts of the owner/agent to reach underserved populations through community contacts and other direct methods of advertising.

- Advertising in minority or specialized publications to reach targeted populations, such as magazines, newspapers, or radio or television ads.
- Establishing relationships with organizations, churches, agencies, or businesses in the community who work directly with an underserved population.
- Alternate advertising formats such as Braille, large print, audio format, and/or language translation appropriate to the community.
- Periodically review the special marketing efforts and evaluate successes and failures to expand on the successes or make changes to improve the plan.

The Goals

- Attract targeted applicants Ensure underserved populations have knowledge of housing opportunities and are offered housing without discrimination for persons who qualify.
- **Ongoing direct marketing** Demonstrate meaningful attempts to increase underserved populations.

- Review and adjust Review demographics by making a conscious effort to understand the community and changes in underserved populations in the market area. Adjust contacts or methods of advertising if needed.
- Inclusive and diverse housing population The property should strive to house both majority and minority populations represented in the housing market areas thus ensuring that segregation or redlining does not intentionally occur.

AFHMP Regulations and Requirements

The regulations for the AFHMP can be found at <u>24 CFR Part 200 subpart M</u>, <u>24 CFR Part 5</u>, and <u>24 CFR Part 108</u>.

Housing Protected Classes

Federal: 24 CFR Part 100	State: lowa Code 216
Color	Color
Disability	Creed
Familial Status	Familial Status
National Origin	Gender Identity
Race	Mental Disability
Religion	National Origin
Sex (including gender identity and sexual orientation)	Physical Disability
	Race
	Religion
	Retaliation
	Sex
	Sexual Orientation

Local protected classes may expand this list for your project – check the municipality local to the project with questions.

General AFHMP Requirements

In Iowa, projects that have received HUD funding (HOME funds or National Housing Trust Fund) or allocated LIHTC beginning in 2009 are required to provide an AFHMP. All programs follow the requirements at <u>24 CFR 200.620</u>. At a minimum, the AFHMP for multifamily rental projects should be reviewed every five years by pulling current demographics, comparing them with current resident percentages, and evaluating community contacts and marketing methods to research and locate new opportunities when not successful. For HOME-only funded programs, a new plan is required for each new contract.

The lowa Finance Authority requires **all properties to target Persons with Disabilities**, regardless of percentages listed.

First time Placed-In-Service properties are currently required by the LIHTC Program QAP to provide the following in addition to the AFHMP:

- Tenant Selection Plan, including waiting list policy
- Lease
- Lease Addendums
- Community Rules and Regulations
- VAWA document requirements
- IowaHousingSearch.org advertising
- Public Housing Agency (PHA) Commitment to Notify of Vacancies

More detail on these requirements can be found in the online application in the Prior to Placed-In-Service Tab.

Hiring Practices

Owners are required to maintain a non-discriminatory hiring policy for staff engaged in the rental of properties under Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Regulations.

Section 504 Accessibility Requirements

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 makes it illegal for federal agencies, programs, or activities that receive federal financial assistance or are conducted by a federal agency to discriminate against qualified individuals with disabilities. Requirements under Section 504 include reasonable accommodation for employees with disabilities, program accessibility, effective communication with people who have hearing or vision disabilities, and accessible new construction and alterations. HOME, NHTF, and most lowa LIHTC properties are required to meet or exceed Section 504 accessibility requirements, as 5% of a project's total units must be fully accessible for mobility impairments and 2% of a project's total units must be accessible for persons with visual and hearing impairments.

LIHTC properties should verify property requirements by reviewing their Land Use Restriction Agreement (LURA). The selections made by the property may require an increased percentage of accessible units.

Symbols of Accessibility

Accessible facilities which meet the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (UFAS) 4.1, Minimum Requirements, may use the international symbol of accessibility. Please ensure the property meets these requirements if the symbol is used. Generally, a wheelchair must be able to maneuver throughout the building and on all floors. Buildings with multiple floors require an elevator. If you are unsure, please obtain advice from your Architect. The symbol shall be displayed as:



What form do I use?

All Multifamily Rentals (regardless of funding source):

Use the most current HUD 935.2A form, found <u>here</u>. If you have questions or trouble finding the form, contact <u>IFA</u> for assistance.

Non-multifamily Rentals (typically HOME only funded projects):

Use the most current program specific IFA approved form for HOME TBRA and Homebuyer programs. Contact <u>IFA</u> for a copy of either form. There is a different AFHMP guide to use for non-multifamily, HOME funded projects on the IFA website.

Completing the AFHMP Form and Worksheets

This guidance is consistent with TBRA and Homebuyer requirements, though the form sections are based on HUD's AFHMP Multifamily form. If your project is a non-multifamily HOME or NHTF only project, see the AFHMP guide for those programs.

AFHMP sections not discussed in this guide should be self-explanatory, refer to the instructions on the HUD form if needed.

1b. Project Contract Number

This section should contain all contract project numbers associated with the allocation. If appropriate, list LIHTC, state HOME, and state NHTF Project Numbers separately in this area.

1d. Census Tract

Based on project address. Reference https://geomap.ffiec.gov/ffiecgeomap/ if needed.

1e. Housing/Expanded Market Area:

- Housing Market Area is the city/town that attracts most applicants.
- Expanded Market Area is the county or Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) the Housing Market Area is located in.

Note that in most areas of Iowa, the county generates 75% or more of applicants and is the most common expanded housing market area. MSA's are at least 2 counties and often more than two. IFA does not suggest using the MSA unless at least 50% of the applicants come from various counties found in the MSA but does not include the county which the property is located. Iowa's MSAs are:

- Ames, IA
- Cedar Rapids, IA
- Davenport-Moline-Rock Island, IA-IL
- Des Moines-West Des Moines, IA
- Dubuque, IA
- Iowa City, IA
- Omaha-Council Bluffs, NE-IA
- Sioux City, IA-NE-SD
- Waterloo-Cedar Falls, IA

3a. Demographics of Project and Housing Market Area

To complete Worksheet One, use the most current 5-year estimates from the <u>US Census Bureau</u> and Census Bureau reports:

- 1. **DP05** Demographic and Housing Estimates (all projects); provides Race and Ethnicity Percentages
- 2. **DP02** Disability Characteristics (all projects)
- 3. **B11004** Households and Families (family or general projects only); provides Households with one or more people under 18 years old.

A step-by-step guide about how to pull these reports can be found <u>here</u>. The US Census has updated the way reports are pulled and it may continue to change over time. If you have questions about census data, please contact Bern Beck for new AFHMPs or Vicky Ohrtman for AFHMP updates.

- To reduce the data for **DP05** to be more manageable, enable editing on the downloaded document.
 - In Column A, replace the heading LABEL by Typing in DP05 [YEAR USED] 5-year Estimates
 - Delete Column B Sex & Age
 - o Delete Column C through Column BV
 - o Delete Column D through Column H
 - Column A should be DP05 [YEAR USED] 5-year Estimates and lists County, Place, and Census Tract below.
 - Column B should be Total Population
 - Column C should be Hispanic or Latino (of any race)
 - Column D should be White Alone
 - o Column E should be Black or African American Alone
 - o Column F should be American Indian and Alaska Native Alone
 - Column G should be Asian Alone
 - o Column H should be Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander Alone
 - Delete Columns I through Q
- This provides you with the basic groups and percentages required on Worksheet 1 for Race & Ethnicity. It would be easiest to move all column headings to row 5, then delete rows 1-4 before printing the worksheet to a PDF.

Pull Census Data and Enter All Percentages

Once the percentages have been pulled from the US Census Data reports, enter the percentages into Worksheet 1. Using the percentages entered on the worksheet, analyze the information to determine next steps for the AFHMP.

- The column with the highest percentages is the majority population. On Worksheet 1, highlight all percentages which are lower than the majority population but higher than 1.0%.
 - If lower than 1%, these groups have very limited or no presence in the housing areas. These groups may be difficult or impossible to directly target. Do not check in part 3b. of the AFHMP unless you can specify additional information in Part 8, Additional Considerations, in the AFHMP.
 - Print as a PDF so it can be incorporated in 1 PDF when assembling the AFHMP Package.

Reminder: the lowa Finance Authority requires **all properties to target Persons with Disabilities**, regardless of percentages listed from Census Data reports.

Projects Without Existing Tenants (New Construction, Adaptive Reuse):

For projects that have not been initially placed in service and do not have existing tenants, the Project's Residents and Project's Applicant Data columns will be left blank, and the analysis will be based solely on the Census Tract, Housing Market Area, and Expanded Housing Market Area until the next evaluation.

- Taking out the highest percentage demographic group, evaluate the remaining demographic groups.
 - Projects need to target outreach and marketing efforts at demographic groups shown at 1% or greater.
 - Projects do not need to target any demographic groups shown at less than 1%, unless you are able to describe why the project is choosing to include this population and describe how the project is able to directly reach this population, using the form's Part 8, Additional Considerations, to explain.

Exceptions to the 1% Measure explained above may occur. If you have questions, please reach out to IFA.

Examples include:

- Some demographic areas may not have a minority population with 1% or greater. The plan may need to be expanded to include a larger region or multiple counties surrounding the housing market area. This area should be expanded until you can identify at least one minority population closest to the property that has greater than 1%.
- An underserved population is known to exist in the housing area, yet the demographics do not represent them in the census data. Your knowledge of the community should be considered for direct marketing opportunities. If this occurs, list the demographic group not included on the worksheet under "other," and specify the underserved population and information that is known.

Projects With Existing Tenants (Rehab or Acquisition Rehab, Existing Properties, or AFHMP Plan Updates)

Any project with existing tenants needs to complete the Project's Residents and Project's Applicant Data columns on Worksheet 1.

For these projects and all properties with existing tenants, use current tenant demographic percentages to analyze if any group on the Worksheet is still underserved at the property, including the majority population. This will demonstrate if the property has been successful in housing underserved populations. In some situations, this may mean that your AFHMP might include an outreach plan to the majority population, if the majority population is severely underrepresented in the existing tenant population.

Projects that collect demographic information from applicants at time of application need to complete the Project's Applicant Data column. These percentages will help determine if the property has been successful attracting minority applicants and further will evaluate reasons why minorities who applied were not approved (examples: no vacancy, did not pass screening, did not meet income qualifications).

Note that demographic information is required by HUD to be requested for LIHTC, HOME, or NHTF Programs by the property when accepting applicants, but optional for the applicant to complete. IFA recommends including listing a percentage for "no response".

Evaluate if there is significant under-representation of any demographic group within the project's residents or current applicants in relation to the housing/expanded housing market area.

 Target outreach and marketing to any under-represented demographic groups. This could include the majority population (highest percentage), if this population is not present or extremely underrepresented within the project and/or applicants.

Projects do not need to target any demographic groups shown at less than 1% unless you are able to describe why the project is choosing to include this population and describe how the project is able to directly reach this population, using the form's Part 8, Additional Considerations, to explain.

AFHMP Plan Updates

Consider the last plan's resident percentages compared to the current resident percentages.

- Have underserved populations grown? It may be possible community contacts and marketing methods have been effective.
- Have underserved populations remained the same or decreased? Previous community contacts and marketing methods likely have not been effective and new efforts should be made to locate new contacts and advertising methods.

3b. Targeted Marketing Activity

When Worksheet 1 is complete, use this information to check the populations identified in 3b. "Targeted Marketing Activity" on the AFHMP form.

Each group checked in 3b. will then be added to Worksheet 3 - Community Contact Worksheet and Worksheet 4 – Methods of Advertising Worksheet.

Worksheet 3 – Community Contacts, and Worksheet 4 – Methods of Advertising

- List each targeted group separately on each worksheet.
- Use local contacts and advertising sources first. The local area is the housing market area named on the plan. If opportunities are not found in the housing market area, move to the expanded housing market area, and only if necessary, expand further to regional opportunities, since it is less likely a property can attract applicants that are not shown to be living in the housing market/expanded housing market areas.
- Contact all community contacts and discuss how they can assist your project to attract targeted underserved populations.
- Develop positive relationships and have continued communication with these contacts. If necessary, use these contacts to build additional outreach and establish additional methods of advertising.
- Contacts and methods listed should be known to effectively reach specific targeted populations prior to advertising.

Sample worksheets can be found <u>here</u>. Projects can develop and use their own Word table or Excel spreadsheet as long as it includes the same information found on the HUD form.

4a. and Worksheet 2, Establishing a Residency Preference Area

Do not complete unless the project is a Section 8 HUD financed project <u>and</u> the project has an approved residency preference through HUD. If you believe this applies to your project, contact IFA for additional requirement information.

5a. and 5b., Public Access

Fair Housing Posters, Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plans, Tenant Selection Criteria, and other management policies should be displayed and made available for public review.

5c. Project Site Sign and Equal Housing Opportunity (EHO) Advertising

All advertising of residential real estate for sale, rent, or financing should contain an Equal Housing Opportunity (EHO) logo, statement, or slogan as a means of educating the home seeking public that the property is available to all persons. The choice of logo, statement, or slogan will depend on the type of media used (visual or auditory) and size of the advertisement.

Property signs shall contain the EHO logo, statement, or slogan and should be visible to anyone viewing the sign. If the sign has not been constructed when the AFHMP is submitted, provide a copy of the planned sign design and content prepared by the sign manufacturer or architect. If a site sign is not used, please explain.

Logo is below, and link to EHO logo, statement, and slogan can be found here.



Part 6, Evaluation of Marketing Activities

Maintaining a file will help you to establish the evaluation process required in Part 6 and assist with subsequent AFHMP updates in the future.

Documentation of targeted outreach and marketing efforts will show:

- How you determined what outreach was needed.
- What was done by documenting actions taken.
- When actions were taken.
- Why decisions were made to change or expand efforts.

A Community Contact Journal is a good way to document all special outreach efforts. A sample journal can be found <u>here</u>.

7b. – 7d. Staff Instruction/Training

Agents and employees must be provided verbal and written instructions regarding policies of nondiscrimination and fair housing. Training/instruction questions shall be asked about the Fair Housing Act and Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing. Dates, content, and anticipated training should be tracked, and copies of training materials should be kept.

Part 8, Additional Considerations

Provide additional information if "Other" is selected or other exceptions are identified. Explain exceptions or additional information in this section. If necessary, attach an additional sheet with this information and place a note in this section to "see attached".

Evaluating the Plan

The AFHMP must be reviewed at least every five years for multifamily projects. Review includes pulling new demographics for the housing market to identify changes, evaluating the targeted marketing and outreach for under-represented populations, updating training information, and reviewing staff information for accuracy. Projects may also need to provide a new plan sooner than five years if management, owner, addresses, contact information or other substantial information changes have occurred since the last plan was provided.

At a minimum, a new Worksheet 1 providing current Project's Resident information and updating the demographic data must be pulled and compared to the previously implemented AFHMP plan. If the data indicates that the previous AFHMP strategies have been successful in attracting under-represented populations, the project needs to submit the new Worksheet 1, a copy of their most recent accepted AFHMP, and a letter summarizing the success.

If the data indicates that the previous AFHMP strategies were not successful, properties must provide a new AFHMP, making changes in order to attract under-represented populations and describing new targeted marketing and outreach strategies.

Be sure to continue using your Community Contact Journal to document the success and/or challenges of your AFHMP.

Projects receiving HOME funds must provide a new plan for each contract awarded.

Please send all updated plans to Vicky Ohrtman.

Evaluating Marketing Methods

Suggestions to ask tenants/applicants:

- How did they hear about the property?
- Could they benefit from accessible features in the unit?
- Race and ethnicity information. If race or ethnicity is unknown or the tenant/applicant does not wish to provide it, HUD requires that this percentage be tracked as "unknown".

Regarding the property:

- The community contact journal will help you evaluate the marketing methods used, including the types of advertising methods and copies of ads used to attract targeted populations. Were these successful?
- The community contact journal will also help you demonstrate dates and content of communication with community contacts. Were relationships successful?
- Consider if demographic data for current residents accurately represents the property over the last five years. If not, explain why.
- Determine if the demographic composition of the residents have changed.
- Did the advertising methods attract targeted populations?
- Is training and instruction current? If no, update the plan and document updated training for staff.
- Describe why the current plan should be successful in the future.

Reminders Before Submitting

Double check:

- Project number. Make sure the plan correctly lists the project number that requires the AFHMP. The HOME Program, National Trust Fund and/or LIHTC project number are missing or incorrectly listed. LIHTC Projects allocated prior to 2009 that did not include HOME or NHTF did not require an AFHMP.
- Targeted Marketing. Do not check all Race and Ethnicity boxes, as it is atypical that all demographic groups would need to be directly targeted in most areas of Iowa. Please review

your demographic data and evaluate the demographic percentages before checking the boxes. A reminder again that Persons with Disabilities must be checked, and a community contact established for this population, as required by IFA.

- 3. Worksheet 3, Community Contacts. For the first column, list each targeted population separately. For the second column, be sure to include the contact's name, organization, address, phone number/email address for each community contact as well as a brief description of that organization's experience working with the population as listed in column 1, the date contact was made/will be made, and how this contact will be assisting you with the AFHMP. A sample can be found <u>here</u> for assistance.
- 4. Worksheet 4, Marketing Activities Methods of Advertising. In the first column, the name of the advertiser should be listed under the method of advertising. Each targeted population should be listed in a separate column, and the corresponding column will list advertising methods used to reach the identified population. If you have general advertising methods that are used to attract anyone, regardless of demographics, use a separate column to list these. Be sure to attach copies of all advertising being used. A sample can be found here for assistance.

Don't forget to sign and date your plan! The person responsible for implementing and reviewing the plan is required to sign and date the plan before it can be accepted.

Questions?

Please contact IFA if you have questions regarding your plan or need information on how to obtain demographic information.

Initial Plans:

Bern Beck 800#: 800-432-7230 Direct Line: 515-452-0427 Email: bernadette.beck@iowafinance.com

Plan Updates:

Vicky Ohrtman 800#: 800-432-7230 Direct Line: 515-452-0415 Email: vicky.ohrtman@iowafinance.com

Sample Worksheets and Journal

Worksheet 3: Community Contacts, Block 4b

Reminder: Persons with Disabilities will always be included in your Community Contacts worksheet as well as Worksheet 1 and Worksheet 4.

Worksheet 3: Proposed Marketing Activities - Community Contacts (See AFHMP, Block 4b)

For each targeted marketing population designated as least likely to apply in Block 3b, identify at least one community contact organization you will use to facilitate outreach to the particular population group. This could be a social service agency, religious body, advocacy group, community center, etc. State the names of contact persons, their addresses, their telephone numbers, their previous experience working with the target population, the approximate date contact was/will be initiated, and the specific role they will play in assisting with the affirmative fair housing marketing. Please attach additional pages if necessary.

Targeted Population(s)	Community Contact(s) including required information noted above.		
Black/African American	NAACP, 123 Street, City, State, Bob Jones, Director		
	bobj@naacp.org		
	September 1, 2016, NAACP is an organization which supports rights		
	of Black/African American persons in the community. They will		
	include advertising for the property in the monthly newsletter.		
Latino/Hispanic	El Rodeo, 345 Street, City, State, Michael Gomez		
	mgomez@elrodeo.com. August 25, 2016, Serves the local		
	Latino/Hispanic community by promoting cultural activities. They		
	have agreed to display the brochure on their bulletin board and make		
	staff aware of this apartment community.		
Asian	Korean Methodist, 789 Street, City, State, Lee Min-Ho, Pastor. Aug		
	3, 2016, Serves the Korean community in the XYZ area and holds		
	Sunday services. Pastor will include information in the weekly		
	bulletin translated in Korean and English to inform parishioners.		
Persons with Disabilities	Aging Resources 1001 X Street, City, State, Lisa Smith, September		
	6, 2016, Works with a variety of individuals that have disabilities and		
	provides referrals for services. Will provide brochures when housing		
	assistance is needed.		

Worksheet 4: Methods of Advertising, Block 4c

Worksheet 4: Proposed Marketing Activities – Methods of Advertising (See AFHMP, Block 4c)

Complete the following table by identifying your targeted marketing population(s), as indicated in Block 3b, as well as the methods of advertising that will be used to market to that population. For each targeted population, state the means of advertising that you will use as applicable to that group and the reason for choosing this media. In each block, in addition to specifying the media that will be used (e.g., name of newspaper, television station, website, location of bulletin board, etc.) state any language(s) in which the material will be provided, identify any alternative format(s) to be used (e.g. Braille, large print, etc.), and specify the logo(s) (as well as size) that will appear on the various materials.

Attach additional pages, if necessary, for further explanation. Please attach a copy of the advertising or marketing material.

marketing mater	lai.				
Targeted Populations→		Black/African American	Hispanic/Latino	Asian	Persons with Disabilities
Methods of	General				
Advertising ↓	Advertising				
	1 x 1 ad in		Hola lowa 2x2 ad		
Newspapers: ABC Daily	1 x 1 ad in apartment for		in Spanish		
Journal	rent section				
XYZ Tribune					
Hola Iowa					
Radio Stations:	Ad in English on		Ad in Spanish		
La Reina Radio	KJJY and KGGO		6am, Noon, 5pm		
KJJY KGGO	at noon and 3 Monday Friday		Monday-Friday		
TV Stations:	Monday-Friday 12pm & 12am 1-			ļ	
KCCI	minute segments				
WHO	for both stations.				
Electronic	Facebook post				
Media:	Apartment.com				
Facebook	ad				
Apartment.com	Property website				
Property.com Bulletin Boards:	ad		American/Mexican	8 ½ x 11	8 ½ x 11 housing
Restaurants			American/Mexican AM Vets Club 8 ½	8 ½ x 11 Mandarin	information in
Agencies			x 11 in Spanish	Restaurant	Braille provided to
			r		lowa Dept for the
					Blind for
L	0.1/	0.4/1// // 7			distribution
Brochures,	8 ½ x 11 flyer in	8 ½ X 11 flyer	Brochure provided		Brochures to
Notices, Flyers:	English at local grocery stores	provided to Director at	in Spanish to Diamante, Inc.		Aging Resources in large print in
Hy- Vee/Fareway	grocery stores	NAACP in English	Diamante, Inc.		English
NAACP		and Arabic,			
Urban Dreams		Brochures			
Diamante		provided to staff			
Aging		at Urban Dreams			
Resources		in English and			
	Area Ohi I	Swahili		Kara	Ebrew - 2011
Other (specify): Churches	Area Churches bulletin ads with	Corinthian Baptist and St. Paul AME		Korean UMC	Flyer will be posted at St
Churches	apartment rental	bulletin ads with		bulletin ad	Cate's Church and
	info monthly in	apartment rental		in Korean	Calvary Lutheran
	English	info monthly in			& translated in
	-	English			sign language
					during Deaf
					services.

Community Contact Journal

Sample Community Contact Journal

For each underserved population identified in the AFHMP, please keep records like this journal to document special outreach efforts. This will assist you when completing Community Contacts and Methods of Advertising in the plan. This information may be helpful in evaluating your marketing activities for future activities and updates.

Project Name: Project Contract Number(s): Community Contact Name: Contact Person: Full Address: Telephone Number: Email Address: Fax Number: Website: Describe the Organization:

Targeted Population:

Describe previous experience with the population and how they will assist you to reach the targeted population:

Will alternate format(s) be used? (Example: Braille, large print, language translation) Yes / No If yes, briefly describe:

Date of Contact	Method of Communication (in person, telephone, email, US mail, etc.)	Description of Contact Made (highpoints of discussions, and outcome)	Person's Name Making the Contact

Attach a copy of the advertising or marketing material(s) used.